D b ol

‘Earth Negotiations Bull etlw

A Reportl ng Servicefor Environment and Devel opment Negotlatl ons
CSW-44 on-lineat http://www.iisd.ca/4wcw/csw44/

Vol. 14 No. 28

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development

Thursday, 9 March 2000

CSW-44 HIGHLIGHTS:
WEDNESDAY, 8 MARCH 2000
On Wednesday, 8 March 2000, Working Group | met inthe
morning to continue negotiation of bracketed text contained inthe
introduction of the proposed outcome document. Del egates recon-
vened briefly in Plenary in the afternoon to hear astatement by the
President of the UN Security Council. Working Group |1 met immedi-
ately afterward to begin discussion of actionsand initiativesto over-
come obstacles and to achieve the full and accel erated implementation
of the PFA (E/CN.6/2000/L.1/Rev.1).

PLENARY

In celebration of International Women’'s Day, Amb. Anwarul
Karim Chowdhury (Bangladesh), President of the Security Council
(UNSC), read a statement from the UNSC. He noted it was an honor to
present the first UNSC statement on mainstreaming gender issuesin
all aspects of peace processes.

The statement recognizesthat peaceisinextricably linked to
equality between women and men. It affirmsthat equal accessand full
participation of women in power structures and their full involvement
inall effortsfor the prevention and resol ution of conflicts are essential
for peace and security. It further notesthereview of the FWCW isan
essential element in achieving thisgoal . Referring to the vulnerability
of women and children in armed conflict, and that they constitute the
majority of refugees and internally displaced persons, the UNSC notes
that although women play important rolesin conflict resolution and
other parts of the peace process, they are underrepresented in decision-
making. The statement declaresthat if women areto play an equal part
in security and maintaining peace, they must be empowered politically
and economically, and represented adequately at al levels of decision-
making across all stages of the peace process. The statement under-
scorestherole of womenin preserving social order and fostering
peacein their communities during conflicts, and calls upon stake-
holdersto refrain from human rights abusesin conflicts, including

those that are gender-specific. It further callsfor respect of interna-
tional humanitarian and human rightslaws, recallsthe obligation to
prosecute those responsible for grave breaches of these laws, and
welcomestheinclusion of all formsof sexual violence asawar crime
inthe Rome Statute of the International Criminal Court. The UNSC
stressesthat efforts should be strengthened to assist refugees and
displaced women and underscores the importance of promoting active
and visible gender-mainstreaming in all policies and programmes at
all levelswhile addressing armed or other conflicts.

CUBA expressed concern over the UNSC's participationin
discussing the advancement of women, maintaining that thisissueis
primarily the responsibility of the GA and ECOSOC. She highlighted
challengesfaced in addressing women’sissues, and expressed concern
about mandates. President Chowdhury responded that he did not feel
the UNSC wasin any way taking over thework of the GA and
ECOSOC, but rather the intention was to emphasize women's contri-
butions to peace-building and the importance of mainstreaming
gender in conflict resolution. He said he hoped the UNSC' s statement
would add to other efforts, highlighting that the various organs of the
UN must support each other in their mutual objectives.

WORKING GROUP |

Working Group | continued negotiation of proposed text revisions
to the outcome document regarding further actions and initiativesto
implement the Beijing Declaration and the PFA (E/CN.6/2000/PC/
L.1/Rev.1). The Group had beforeit the Secretariat’s redraft compila-
tion text of theintroduction asabasisfor discussion.

On aEU-proposed text reaffirming governments’ commitment to
the goal s and objectives contained in the Beijing Declaration and the
PFA, JUSCANZ proposed referring to the outcome document as
tangibl e affirmation of commitment by governmentsto the goalsand
objectives contained in the Beijing Declaration and the PFA.
JUSCANZ, supported by the EU and MEXICO, suggested text recog

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by Tonya Barnes <tmb34@columbia.edu>, Wendy Jackson <wendy@iisd.org>, Violette
Lacloche <violette@iisd.org> and Gretchen Sidhu <gsidhu@igc.org>. The Editor is PamelaChasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the M anaging Editor is L angston James "Kimo"
Goree <kimo@iisd.org>. Digital editing by Leila Mead <leila@interport.net>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are The Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the
Government of Canada (through CIDA), the United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and Landscape (SAEFL), the United Kingdom
Department for International Development (DFI D) and the European Commission (DG-ENV.) General Support for the Bulletin during 2000 s provided by thethe German Federal
Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Ministry of Environment of
Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairsand Environment of Norway, the Ministry of Foreign Affairsand Ministry of Environment of Finland, the Government of Sweden, the
Government of Australia, the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facility (GEF) and BP Amoco. Specific funding for coverage of the
Beijing +5 process has been provided by The Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairsand the United Kingdom DFID. The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org>
and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. || SD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca>and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, ManitobaR3B 0Y 4,
Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders. Excerpts from the
Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in non-commercia publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercial
publications, contact the Managing Editor. Electronic versions of the Bulletin are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://
www.iisd.callinkages/. The satellite image was taken above New York ©2000 The Living Earth, Inc. http:/livingearth.com. For information on the Earth Negotiations Bulletin,
send e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.




Thursday, 9 March 2000

Vol. 14 No. 28 Page 2

nizing the contribution of the regional prepatory meetingsto the prepa-
rations of the Special Session by ensuring aregional perspectiveon
implementation and follow-up.

Addressing the paragraph on reviewing progress of the 12 critical
areas, the EU suggested that reference to the elimination of al prac-
ticesthat discriminate against women be placed immediately
following the reference to the advancement and empowerment of
women, and proposed del eting language on lack of equal accessto
productive resources and economic independence. The G-77/CHINA
preferred retaining all text, but suggested the reference be placed later
inthe paragraph, allowing for amorelogical flow from general issues
to specific ones. JUSCANZ disagreed. Chair Mlacak proposed
retaining brackets and determining placement of the remainder of the
text at alater time.

The EU suggested referring to resol utionsinstead of recommenda-
tionsin thetext on the basisfor further progress and accountability to
theworld’swomen and the full realization of the human rights of
women. The G-77/CHINA, with the support of JUSCANZ, preferred
retaining the original language. Regarding text on governments’
primary responsibility in implementing the PFA and further actions
and initiatives, the G-77/CHINA suggested referencesto: the primary
responsibility of governmentsfor fully implementing the PFA ; adop-
tion of an integrated and balanced approach that encompasses main-
streaming agender perspectiveinto all legislation, policiesand
programmes with actions specifically targeting empowerment of
women and girls; and the all ocation of sufficient resources. Shealso
calledfor policy, legislative and programme measures to be supported
by increased international cooperation, institutional arrangements,
adequate data, targets, national accountability, follow-up mechanisms
and measurable goals. JUSCANZ suggested language stating that poli-
cies, legidation and programmes must respect and value the full diver-
sity of women and recogni ze that many women face additional barriers
because of language, ethnicity, culture, religion, sexual orientation,
disahility, socio-economic class, or status asindigenous people,
migrants, displaced people, refugees, or “ other status.” The EU
proposed reference to mechanismsfor accountability, monitoring and
follow-up, aswell asfull recognition of theimportance of the alloca-
tion of sufficient resources. The HOLY SEE suggested text encour-
aging the activeinvolvement of men and boysin fulfilling the goal s of
the PFA. TURKEY noted similariti es between the G-77/Chinaand EU
proposalsand called for prompt resolution of the text.

The G-77/CHINA asked for timeto consult and the Group was
adjourned.

WORKING GROUP ||

Chair A. K. Bhattacharjee (India) opened the first meeting of
Working Group |1 and called on governmentsto set targets for making
progress on the negotiation of actions and initiativesto overcome
obstaclesand to achievethe full and accel erated implementation of the
PFA. He noted thiswould be possiblewith trust and compromise, and
asked that no substantive changes be brought forward after the first
reading.

A group of countries noted that the section on actionsand initia-
tiveswas particularly important because it outlines actionsfor the
future. Shecalled for streamlining theintroductory paragraphsto draw
clear links between the actions and earlier sections on achievements,
obstacles and challenges. She called for strengthening language on
actionsand further refinement of the placement of paragraphs. A
regional group said it would submit additions and amendments and
emphasized that the group would focus on the substance of the para-
graphs.

On the paragraph referring to government recognition of steps
necessary to achievethe goals of the PFA, agroup of countries
suggested reference be made to governments recommitting themsel ves
totheBeijing Declaration and the PFA, aswell asto further actionsand
initi atives to overcome obstacl es and address challenges.

Another group proposed, and many del egates supported, language
referring to progress made since the Beijing Conference. Others
supported reference to the eval uation of progress. Delegates also
suggested: deleting the referenceto current challenges affecting the
full realization of the PFA; adding areferenceto theright to develop-
ment; and referring to human rights as essential to rather than prerequi-
sitesfor realizing gender equality.

Rather than negotiating specific words and phrases, aregional
group, supported by agroup of countries, expressed its preference for
considering whole paragraphs, and suggested del egations distribute
text proposals. Chair Bhattacharjee stated that consideration of whole
paragraphswould not be efficient given time constraints and consid-
ering that del egations were not coming forward with substantive
changes. The Working Group adjourned at 5:00 pm to allow partici-
pantsto consider text proposal s of other delegations.

IN THE CORRIDORS
Amidst the general good humor, delegates are anxiousto start text

negotiation. Between the quibbling over details and therefusal of
major groups to proceed without lengthy examinations of all key
proposals, delegates are worried that if an open-minded approach
toward compromiseis not rapidly adopted, matterswill beleft
pending. One delegate stated ironically that delegations could not do a
better job of delaying the process and avoiding an outcometo the
meeting.

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY
WORKING GROUPS: Working Group | isexpected to recon-

veneat 10:00 am in Conference Room 6 to continue negotiation of the
introduction to the outcome document. Working Group |1 will meet at
3:00 pmin Conference Room 1 to negotiate text proposals submitted
by groupson actions and initiatives to overcome obstacles and to
achieve the full and accelerated implementation of the PFA (E/CN.6/
2000/L.1/Rev.1).



